
TO: City Council DATE: December 5,2005 

FROM: Cynthia Kurtz, City Manager 

SUBJECT: PROPOSED VACATION OF A PORTION OF MADIA STREET 

The following represents staffs response to questions raised by the City Council 
during their consideration of the subject project. 

1. Do all the departments impacted support the proposed vacation? 

The Police Department, Fire Department, and the Department of Transportation 
all provided written memorandums supporting the proposed vacation. 

2. What is the benefit to the community of the proposed vacation? 

The value of the easement is estimated at less than $1000 because the City 
does not have underlying fee title, only the right to place a road over the property 
owned by others. The City placed a condition of the proposed vacation requiring 
the installation of a cul-de-sac. The construction of a 25 foot radius cul-de-sac 
will improve turning movements for residents, delivery trucks, refuse collection 
vehicles, street sweepers, and emergency vehicles. The configuration requires 
the applicant to grant an easement to the City for street purposes for a portion of 
the cul-de-sac. The estimated cost to the applicant for construction of the cul-de- 
sac, including required work in the proposed vacation area and the processing of 
the easement for a portion of the cul-de-sac, is approximately $120,000. In 
addition, the proposed vacation of a 50-foot-wide street, approximately 150 feet 
in length, will reduce the cost of street maintenance and repair. 

Public street trees will remain with the proposed configuration of the cul-de-sac. 
This configuration also took into consideration native trees within the area. No 
native or specimen trees will be impacted and the Tree Protection Ordinance will 
apply. 
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3. Are there any public trails leading into the Arroyo from Madia Street? 

Our records do not indicate any existing "public" trails leading from the east end 
of Madia Street down to the Arroyo and Parkview Avenue. 

Staff has requested a title company to research the language of the existing 
easement for Madia Street, determine the underlying fee title to the street and to 
determine if there are any recorded public trails leading from Madia Street to the 
Arroyo and Parkview Avenue. It is anticipated that this information will be 
available by December 5 for the continuation of the Public Hearing for the subject 
project. 

4. What opportunities does the property owner have to construct 
additions to the existing structures? 

There are two separate parcels that gain usable square footage as a result of the 
proposed vacation: 

I 165 Madia (RS-4 and RS-4-HD) 

Expansion 
The southern portion of this lot is located in an RS-4 zone and the northern 
portion is within an RS-4 Hillside Overlay Zone. 

The existing home is located within the RS-4 portion of the lot and exceeds the 
maximum development standards for RS-4. It could not be expanded within that 
portion of the lot with the current lot configuration. With the additional lot square 
footage resulting from the street vacation the building could be expanded by only 
I60 square feet within the RS-4 zone. 

If an expansion was proposed in the Hillside Overlay Zone building size would be 
regulated by floor area ratio for the entire parcel and neighborhood compatibility 
standards within the Hillside Zone. FAR requirements for the parcel would be 
calculated based on 30% of the flat area and 25% or less for the hillside areas, 
depending on the average slope of the hillside area. However, if more than 500 
square feet are proposed within the Hillside Zone a hillside development permit 
would be required, triggering neighborhood compatibility standards. These 
standards limit the maximum size of the house, regardless of size of lot, to 135% 
of the median home size within 500 feet of the parcel. With the existing home at 
7,360 square feet it is unlikely that an expansion would be able to meet 
neighborhood compatibility standards. 

Second Unit 
A second unit could not be constructed in the RS-4 zone because of the existing 
lot coverage and is prohibited in the Hillside Overlay Zone portion of the lot. 



1 164 Madia Street (RS-4) 

Expansion 
On this parcel expansion would be allowed to a maximum of 35% lot coverage 
and 30% FAR plus 500 square feet. The current home is 3,290 square feet 
which could be expanded to 6,170 square feet on the current lot configuration. 
With the addition of the square footage from the street vacation, the home could 
be expanded to 7,145 square feet. 

Second Unit 
According to the Zoning Code a second dwelling unit may be constructed on any 
legal parcel of 15,000 square feet or more in any RS zoning district. Because 
this parcel exceeds 15,000 square feet a second unit could be built on this parcel 
with or without the vacation of Madia. The size of the second unit is limited by 
code to a maximum of 800 square feet. 

Additional Conditions: 
The following conditions have been added to the proposed vacation in addition to 
those stated in the November 7, 2005, City Council Agenda Report. 

A) The square footage being added to the lot at 11 64 Madia Street not be 
included in total lot size for the purposes of calculating future buildable area (i.e., 
lot coverage and FAR). 

B) A fire hydrant that meets the specified fire flow shall be installed in the 
proposed cul-de-sac. 

C) All landscaping must meet the required fuel modification plan set forth in the 
California Urban Wildland Interface Code 2000 edition. 

In addition to the items above, there are existing utilities within the proposed 
vacation area. The applicant has been conditioned to provide an easement for 
full access to these utilities if they are unable to meet the utilities' requirements 
for abandonment and reconfiguration of their facilities. 

A photograph taken from Madia Street looking eastward toward the street end is 
attached to this memorandum. A 

City Manager 
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